
*Approved by Council April 6, 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED MINUTES* 
SUNNYVALE CITY COUNCIL  
TUESDAY, MARCH 23, 2010 

 
7 P.M. COUNCIL MEETING 

 
CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Hamilton called the meeting to order in the Council Chambers. 
 
SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Melinda Hamilton  

Vice Mayor Christopher Moylan 
Councilmember Otto Lee 
Councilmember Ron Swegles 
Councilmember Anthony (Tony) Spitaleri 
Councilmember David Whittum 
Councilmember Jim Griffith 
 

ABSENT: None 
 

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Gary Luebbers 
Assistant City Manager Robert Walker 
City Attorney David Kahn 
Director of Finance Mary Bradley 
Director of Community Development Hanson Hom  
Director of Public Safety Don Johnson 
Director of Public Works Marvin Rose 
City Clerk Kathleen Franco Simmons 

 
CLOSED SESSION REPORTS FOR MARCH 23, 2010 
Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor Negotiator 
 
Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 – Conference with Real Property 
Negotiator 
 
Vice Mayor Moylan reported the Council discussed two items in Closed Session; direction was 
given on one item, and the second item was continued. 
 
SPECIAL ORDER OF THE DAY – National Library Week, April 11-17, 2010 received by Library 
Director Lisa Rosenblum. 
 
SPECIAL ORDER OF THE DAY – Friends of Sunnyvale Public Library Proclamation received by 
Kathy Broquard.  



City Council Minutes 
March 23, 2010 

* Approved by Council April 6, 2010 

 
2

PRESENTATION – State of the Fremont Union High School District presentation by Superintendent 
Polly Bove. 
 

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Councilmember Griffith announced Google’s plan to build an ultra-high-speed Internet service. 
 
Councilmember Griffith made an announcement regarding the 2010 State of the City Awards.  
 
Councilmember Griffith announced the summer recruitment for board and commission members 
and an upcoming application deadline. 
 
Jack Walker, Chair of Sunnyvale Chamber of Commerce, introduced CEO Don Eagleston. 
 
Don Eagleston stated he looks forward to working with the City of Sunnyvale and the local 
business community. 
 
Clinton Brownley introduced himself to Council, provided information regarding his public service 
background and encouraged Council to contact him so he may assist the local citizenry.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Mayor Melinda Hamilton reported Item 1.I. was pulled from the agenda, per staff request, and will 
not be acted upon at this time. 
 
A member of the public requested to pull Item 1.G from the Consent Calendar. 
 
Vice Mayor Moylan moved and Councilmember Spitaleri seconded the motion to approve the 
Consent Calendar, with the exception of Item 1.G for discussion and Item 1.I. to be deleted. 
 
VOTE:  7 - 0  
 

1.A. Approval of Council Meeting Minutes of March 9, 2010 
1.B. Approval of Information/Action Items – Council Directions to Staff 

 
Fiscal Items 
 

1.C. MOTION 
RTC 10-072 
 

List of Claims and Bills Approved for Payment by the City Manager – List 
No. 495 and 496 

 Staff Recommendation: Review the attached lists of bills. 
 

1.D. RESOLUTION 
RTC 10-075 
 

Resolution Authorizing the Filing of an Application and Acceptance of 
Funding under a Grant from Caltrans for the Lawrence Station Area Plan 
 

 Staff Recommendation: Adopt resolution authorizing the filing of an application and 
acceptance of funding under the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) fiscal 
year 2010/2011 Community-based Transportation Planning Grant for Lawrence Station 
Area Plan (Project), committing the necessary local match and stating assurance to 
complete the project. 

 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 23, 2010 

* Approved by Council April 6, 2010 

 
3

Contracts  
 

1.E. MOTION 
RTC 10-076 
 

Amendment of Outside Counsel Agreement for Employment Litigation 
Services and Advice 

 Staff Recommendation: Approve a First Amendment to increase the contract with the law 
firm of Renne Sloan Holtzman & Sakai, LLP in an amount not to exceed a total of 
$200,000. 
 

Contracts: Sunnyvale Works! 
 

1.F. MOTION 
RTC 10-080 
 

Award of Sunnyvale Works! Contract for the Design of the Morse Avenue 
Neighborhood Park (F0903-81)  

 Staff Recommendation: Alternative 1: Award a contract to SSA Landscape Architects, Inc. 
in an amount not to exceed $339,235 for the design of the Morse Avenue Neighborhood 
Park, and Alternative 2: Approve a project contingency in the amount of $33,924.  

 
Other Items 
 

1.G. MOTION 
RTC 10-078 
 

Annual Review of Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and 
Appointed Officials 

 Public hearing opened at 7:41 p.m. 
 
Tap Merrick requested Council consider Council apologies as an ethical issue to be 
included in the Code of Ethics.  
 
Public hearing closed at 7:42 p.m. 
 
Vice Mayor Moylan moved and Councilmember Lee seconded the motion to approve the 
2010 Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials with no changes. 
 
VOTE: 7-0 
 

1.H. RESOLUTION 
RTC 10-082 

Resolution Adopting a Records Destruction Protocol 
 
 

 Staff Recommendation: Adopt a resolution of the City Council of the City of Sunnyvale 
adopting a records destruction protocol as submitted (Attachment A). 
 

1.I. RESOLUTION 
RTC 10-068 

Resolution for the Installation of an All-Way Stop Sign Control at Wright 
Avenue and The Dalles 
 

 This item was pulled prior to the meeting and not acted upon at this time. 
 

1.J. RESOLUTION 
RTC 10-071 

Approval of Resolution of Support for an East Channel Trail Grant 
Application 

 Staff Recommendation: Approve the Resolution of Support for a SCVWD Trails and Open 
Space Grant Program application and authorizing the City Manager to execute contracts 
and agreements should funding be awarded. 

 



City Council Minutes 
March 23, 2010 

* Approved by Council April 6, 2010 

 
4

STAFF RESPONSES TO PRIOR PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
Melanie Masaniai asked for Council to endorse State Proposition 15.   
 
Tap Merrick voiced his support for Fremont Union High School District’s Measure B.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
2. MOTION 

RTC 10-084 
 

Update on Potential for Utility Users Tax Ballot Measure 

 Finance Director Mary Bradley provided the staff report. 
 
City Attorney David Kahn confirmed for Councilmember Swegles that there is a 
Constitutional requirement that this type of tax increase must go on the ballot at a General 
Election of the Council, which is in 2011.  
 
Finance Manager Bradley stated if it were a special tax and not a general tax, it could go on 
a ballot at any time and would require a 2/3 vote. 
  
Finance Manager Bradley confirmed for Councilmember Lee that the cost of the November 
2011 Council election would be $385,000 and the ballot measure addition would be 
approximately $43,000. Finance Manager Bradley confirmed the pass rate has been about 
25% statewide.  
 
Councilmember Spitaleri confirmed that the cost of the Utility User Tax (UUT) to the 
customer is based on the bill. 
 
Vice Mayor Moylan stated his Utility User Tax totaled approximately $57.00 in one calendar 
year. 
   
Mayor Hamilton confirmed that if metered use dropped because of having solar panels, the 
UUT would drop as well. Finance Manager Bradley confirmed for Mayor Hamilton that the 
telephone tax is on land lines and cell phones; on a land line the UUT is only paid on phone 
calls within the state, not on long distance calls. 
  
Finance Manager Bradley confirmed for Councilmember Whittum that there currently are 
not exemptions for people with hardships. Finance Manager Bradley stated the City does 
not collect the tax; it is collected by the utilities and they have their own policies.  
Councilmember Whittum inquired if there are any exemptions for seniors or disabled 
persons. Finance Manager Bradley stated she believes certain utilities have those types of 
rates. 
 
Finance Manager Bradley confirmed for Councilmember Whittum that the UUT brings in 
approximately $7 million per year. Councilmember Whittum commented about the rise in 
personnel costs in 2009, and stated he does not support raising the UUT because he does 
not think the City is looking at adequately managing personnel costs.  
 



City Council Minutes 
March 23, 2010 

* Approved by Council April 6, 2010 

 
5

Councilmember Swegles stated there are discounts from PG&E for low income and large 
families. 
 
Councilmember Griffith inquired if there is an estimate of what the impact of including 
interstate telephone service would be on the UUT. Finance Manager Bradley responded 
that it could be approximately $500,000 or slightly lower. 
 
Councilmember Griffith expressed concern with comparing Sunnyvale’s UUT to other cities 
in the county which vary greatly in population, and inquired if any cities ever look at the 
Countywide per person average for a cost for UUT. Finance Manager Bradley responded 
that she had not seen that type of analysis, but in about 1994, there was a study done by 
the City of Sunnyvale which showed total comprehensive tax per person per capita.  
 
Councilmember Griffith stated the countywide per city average excluding Santa Clara is 
1.73%, but the largest city in the county, San Jose, is at 5%. Councilmember Griffith stated 
the average person in the County is probably much closer to 4%, therefore making the 
comparison based on the cities being equal seems like a bad methodology.  
 
Finance Manager Bradley stated she has a report which gives the UUT rates by County 
including the population, and she can do some calculations and provide the information to 
Council.   
  
City Attorney Kahn added to his previous comments that the only exception to putting a 
measure on the ballot this year rather than waiting until 2011 would be if Council 
unanimously voted there was an emergency based on factual information. City Attorney 
Kahn clarified for Councilmember Swegles that a budget shortfall would not be considered a 
fiscal emergency. 
 
Public hearing opened at 8:03 p.m. 
 
No speakers. 
 
Public hearing closed at 8:03 p.m. 
 
MOTION: Vice Mayor Moylan moved and Councilmember Swegles seconded the motion to 
direct the city manager to pursue a ballot measure for the November 2011 election to 
increase the rate and/or base of the City’s Utility Users Tax but not to propose any of the 
alternative revenue measures discussed in the report. 
  
Vice Mayor Moylan stated the adjustment to the UUT has not been done since the 1970s 
and it is overdue. Vice Mayor Moylan stated the City has a fiscal policy stating taxes will be 
competitive with those of other cities. 
 
Councilmember Lee stated that gas, water and electricity are daily necessities and the tax 
affects most those who are unable to afford it. Councilmember Lee added with a statewide 
success rate of only 25% and an unemployment rate of 12% in Santa Clara County, it is 
unwise to put this issue on the ballot at this time. 
 
Councilmember Whittum expressed concern regarding controlling personnel costs and 
stated he does not think the ballot measure serves the public interest and he does not 
support it.  
 



City Council Minutes 
March 23, 2010 

* Approved by Council April 6, 2010 

 
6

Councilmember Griffith inquired if staff is looking for more specific direction than is 
contained in the motion. City Manager Luebbers stated percentages and the base would be 
discussed at a later date. Councilmember Griffith stated he supports the motion because 
there are no specifics being decided yet and it is an issue worth discussing in more detail. 
 
Councilmember Swegles addressed Councilmember Lee’s concern regarding the effect of 
an increase on seniors, stating seniors would still receive a discount via the programs in 
place. 
 
Councilmember Spitaleri stated he does not support the motion as he does not believe it will 
pass given the status of the economy.   
 
Mayor Hamilton asked Vice Mayor Moylan about the three potential revenue measures he 
excluded from the motion. Vice Mayor Moylan stated he is opposed to real estate transfer 
taxes in principle, sales taxes are regressive. Vice Mayor Moylan reiterated that the amount 
of UUT that residents pay is very small; the big utility users in the City pay the most tax. 
Vice Mayor Moylan added that residents get the benefit of the City services provided by the 
UUT tax. 
  
Mayor Hamilton stated she opposes the motion because she feels all potential revenue 
alternatives should be reviewed.  
 
VOTE: 3 - 4 (Councilmember Lee, Mayor Hamilton and Councilmembers Spitaleri and 
Whittum dissented) 
 
Motion failed. 
 
MOTION: Councilmember Lee moved and Councilmember Spitaleri seconded the motion to 
take no action at this time but to reconsider the issue in one year to consider all revenue 
measures including the Utility Users Tax. 
 
Councilmember Lee stated it is not a good time to put a tax increase measure on the ballot 
and waiting at least one year would allow the economic condition to potentially approve.  
  
Councilmember Griffith confirmed with Councilmember Lee that his motion is essentially 
that alternative 1 be brought before Council in one year. Councilmember Lee clarified his 
motion was for it to come back to Council in one year, but not for the November 2011 
election.  
 
City Manager Luebbers confirmed for Councilmember Griffith that if alternative 1 had been 
approved, staff would return to Council after significant analysis had been completed with 
enough time to get a measure on the ballot in 2011. Councilmember Griffith confirmed with 
City Manager Luebbers that if Council directed staff to come back in one year, Council 
would be able to decide at that time how to proceed.  
 
Councilmember Lee stated his intent in pushing the issue out one year is to allow time to 
pass in order to reflect on economic conditions. City Manager Luebbers confirmed for 
Councilmember Lee that this timeframe would provide staff sufficient time to study the 
economic conditions and research alternatives in order to bring a comprehensive report 
back Council.   
 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 23, 2010 

* Approved by Council April 6, 2010 

 
7

Councilmember Griffith inquired if delaying the issue to approximately March 2011 would 
unnecessarily burden efforts to put the measure on the ballot. Councilmember Griffith stated 
he supports the motion. 
 
Vice Mayor Moylan stated he opposes the motion if November 2011 is precluded. 
 
Councilmember Griffith stated he opposes the motion if November 2011 is precluded. 
 
Councilmember Lee stated his intent is to push the issue out for one year to allow economic 
conditions to improve and the motion does not necessarily preclude November 2011. 
 
Councilmember Griffith stated he supports the motion if putting a measure on the ballot in 
2011 is an option.  
 
Mayor Hamilton stated if the issue is delayed until March 2011, there are only four months 
to prepare for the ballot, whereas there are 16 months if it is done now. 
 
Councilmember Whittum confirmed his understanding of the motion is to defer this item for 
approximately one year and return and reconsider it.  
 
City Manager Luebbers confirmed for Councilmember Swegles that staff would prepare 
more specific information for a March 2011 Council meeting date. 
 
Mayor Hamilton stated she does not support this motion as she would prefer a clearer 
motion. 
 
Councilmember Spitaleri stated he thought the motion he seconded stated the measure 
would not be going on the November 2011 ballot.  
 
Councilmember Lee stated his understanding from staff was if the issue was postponed for 
one year, staff may still be able to get it on the November 2011 ballot.  Councilmember Lee 
added that his intent is to allow time to pass to see if economic conditions improve and 
therefore a greater chance of success for the measure. At that time, putting the measure on 
the ballot could be evaluated.  
 
Councilmember Spitaleri expressed concern about November 2011 being included in the 
motion.  
 
Councilmember Lee stated he does not want to waste staff time based on data that may be 
premature, and by waiting for one year there may be a better situation to make a decision at 
that time. 
 
Councilmember Whittum clarified his understanding of the motion is the item is being 
deferred to March 2011 for reconsideration. 
 
VOTE: 4 - 3 (Vice Mayor Moylan, Mayor Hamilton and Councilmember Swegles 
dissented) 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 23, 2010 

* Approved by Council April 6, 2010 

 
8

3. 
 

ORDINANCE 
RTC 10-081 

Ordinance of the City of Sunnyvale Adding Chapter 3.70 (Sunnyvale 
Municipal Utilities Revenue Bond Law) to Title 3 (Revenue and 
Finance) Authorizing the City of Sunnyvale to Finance Public Utility  
Enterprises Under the Utilities Revenue Bond Law 
 

 Finance Director Mary Bradley provided the staff report. 
 
Public hearing opened at 8:35 p.m. 
 
No speakers. 
 
Public hearing closed at 8:35 p.m. 
 
MOTION: Councilmember Lee moved and Councilmember Spitaleri seconded the motion to 
adopt the proposed ordinance adding Chapter 3.70 to Title 3 of the Sunnyvale Municipal 
Code authorizing the City of Sunnyvale to finance public utility enterprises under the utility 
revenue bond law. 
  
City Clerk Kathleen Franco Simmons read the ordinance title for the record. 
 
VOTE: 7 - 0 
 

4. MOTION 
RTC 10-083 
 

Council Subcommittee for Board and Commission Bylaw 
Amendments (Study Issue) 
 

 Assistant City Manager Robert Walker provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Hamilton inquired if there could be a policy requiring an ad-hoc committee any time 
there were changes to the board and commission bylaws. Assistant City Manager Walker 
stated if a subcommittee was going to meet every time there are revisions to board and 
commission bylaws it would meet the definition of a standing committee. Assistant City 
Manager Walker stated sometimes the revisions are very minor, and Council may not want 
to convene a standing committee each time. 
 
Mayor Hamilton inquired if a committee could be formed for one set of bylaw changes, and 
dissolve afterwards. Assistant City Manager Walker stated staff would recommend an ad-
hoc committee and a committee would not be convened if the bylaw changes did not 
warrant a committee. Mayor Hamilton confirmed that a policy could be written that Council 
could consider whether or not the changes were substantive enough for a subcommittee, 
and ad hoc committee could be appointed if necessary. Assistant City Manager Walker 
confirmed that Council Policy already allows Council to appoint an ad-hoc committee to 
review any issue when warranted. 
 
Councilmember Griffith confirmed with Assistant City Manager Walker that a standing 
committee would not require regular meeting dates, but it is created for a fixed purpose. 
Councilmember Griffith inquired if administrative changes could be queued until there is 
enough workload to warrant a committee. Assistant City Manager Walker stated there have 
been a number of changes over the years which have been minor and/or intuitive, that are 
brought forth to Council. Assistant City Manager Walker stated putting together a committee 
where staff support would need to be involved would create staff costs and staff feels it is 
unnecessary since Council has another mechanism which achieves the same end. 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 23, 2010 

* Approved by Council April 6, 2010 

 
9

Councilmember Whittum stated board and commission bylaws seem appropriate for a 
Council subcommittee, and inquired if a subcommittee could take the load off staff instead 
of leaning on staff, and inquired as to what that type of subcommittee would be called. 
 
Assistant City Manager Walker responded that Council could put together an ad-hoc 
committee at the time Council felt it was appropriate.  
 
Assistant City Manager Walker and City Manager Luebbers responded to questions from 
Councilmember Griffith and Mayor Hamilton as to the ad-hoc committee review process. 
 
Public hearing opened at 8:47 p.m. 
 
No speakers. 
 
Public hearing closed at 8:47 p.m. 
 
MOTION: Councilmember Spitaleri moved and Councilmember Swegles seconded the 
motion to not approve an amendment to the Council Policy Manual requiring a standing 
Council Subcommittee to review all proposed board and commission bylaws amendments. 
Continue the status quo, retaining Council’s ability to appoint an ad hoc Council 
subcommittee, with no staff support, for proposed board and commission bylaws 
amendments, at Council’s discretion.     
 
Councilmember Griffith stated he opposes the motion. Councilmember Griffith stated a 
subcommittee reviewing proposed bylaw changes before they get to Council would save as 
much time as it would waste. Councilmember Griffith stated that the boards and 
commissions are there to advise Council and the more directly Council can be involved in 
how the commissions run, the better job they will do.  
 
Vice Mayor Moylan stated he agrees that boards and commissions report to Council which 
is why he proposed the amendment to allow them to modify their own bylaws. Vice Mayor 
Moylan stated he thinks the vast majority of the amendments can go on the consent 
calendar, a few that that might be a public hearing item and very few that would be 
controversial enough to handle by forming an ad hoc committee.  
 
Councilmember Swegles stated boards and commissions can provide input to Council at 
any time, and an ad hoc committee can be formed for major changes when necessary.  
 
Councilmember Whittum stated he opposes the motion. 
 
Mayor Hamilton stated she opposes the motion as a mechanism needs to be codified in 
policy that three members of Council will review bylaw changes before they come before full 
Council. 
 
VOTE: 3 - 4 (Councilmember Lee, Councilmember Griffith, Mayor Hamilton and 
Councilmember Whittum dissented) 
 
Motion failed. 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 23, 2010 

* Approved by Council April 6, 2010 

 
10

MOTION: Councilmember Griffith moved and Councilmember Whittum seconded the 
motion to approve Alternatives 1 and 2: 1) Approve an amendment to the Council Policy 
Manual requiring a standing Council Subcommittee to review all proposed board and 
commission bylaws amendments and 2) Appoint members of the Council to serve on the 
standing Council Subcommittee to review board and commission bylaws amendments. 
 
Councilmember Griffith stated he would be willing to serve on the committee and he thinks it 
can be handled simply by email without being burdensome. Councilmember Griffith stated it 
sends an important message to boards and commissions that Council is interested in being 
involved in the way they advise Council.   
 
Councilmember Swegles stated he opposes the motion due to the expense which will be 
incurred for a standing committee, when an ad hoc committee can be appointed at any time.
 
Councilmember Spitaleri stated he opposes the motion as an ad hoc committee will not 
break down a firewall between Council and the commissioners; calling the commissioners 
or attending a meeting will do that. 
 
Vice Mayor Moylan reiterated that commissioners are empowered to make changes to the 
bylaws.   
 
City Attorney Kahn explained that there is no Brown Act requirement for noticing with an ad 
hoc committee; a standing committee is subject to the Brown Act and email conversations 
would not be allowed.  
 
Councilmember Griffith confirmed that the subcommittee chair has the ability to review and 
set an agenda in advance of the meeting, and possibly decide not to have a meeting. City 
Attorney Kahn confirmed that a subcommittee chair would set the agenda and could cancel 
it, but conversations amongst the other subcommittee members regarding whether the 
meeting should be cancelled would not be allowed. 
 
VOTE: 4 - 3 (Vice Mayor Moylan, Councilmembers Spitaleri and Swegles dissented) 
 
Councilmember Swegles asked the subcommittee to address the expense which will be 
incurred. Mayor Hamilton suggested a subcommittee be appointed first. 
 
Councilmembers Lee, Griffith and Whittum volunteered to serve on the committee by 
consensus.  
  
By consensus, Council appointed Councilmembers Lee, Griffith, and Whittum to serve on 
the standing Council Subcommittee to review board and commission bylaws amendments. 
  
Mayor Hamilton asked the committee to select a chair offline and notify Council, in 
consultation with the City Attorney. 
 
Mayor Hamilton stated the subcommittee would have to address the expenses offline. 
 

5. COUNCIL 
DISCUSSION 
 

Consider Revisions to Council Policy 7.3.10 Regarding Selection of 
Mayor and Vice Mayor  

 Mayor Hamilton provided a brief report. 



City Council Minutes 
March 23, 2010 

* Approved by Council April 6, 2010 

 
11

Public hearing opened at 9:01 p.m. 
 
Tap Merrick expressed concern about the ability to work with Council being taken away 
from the citizens and becoming more dictatorial and stated the current structure and 
process is workable. 
 
Mayor Hamilton stated this item discusses the current selection process and advised that 
Council will discuss consideration of a directly-elected Mayor on May 11, 2010.  
 
Public hearing closed at 9:04 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Griffith moved and Vice Mayor Moylan seconded the motion to continue 
this item to April 6, 2010. 
 
VOTE: 7 - 0  

 
COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS ON ACTIVITIES FROM INTERGOVERNMENTAL COMMITTEE 
ASSIGNMENTS 
 
Councilmember Griffith reported the Proposition 42 tax issue was signed into law.  
 
NON-AGENDA ITEMS & COMMENTS 
 
Councilmember Lee reported Council attended meetings with various Congressional leaders in 
Washington DC and noted a meeting regarding Hangar One in which all parties agreed to retain 
Hangar One.  
 
Councilmember Lee discussed the importance of completing the U.S. Census form. 
 
Mayor Hamilton announced an article in the San Jose Mercury News about Dr. Pete Worden of 
NASA. 
 
INFORMATION ONLY REPORTS/ITEMS 
 Tentative Council Meeting Agenda Calendar 
 Draft Minutes of the Board of Library Trustees Meeting of March 1, 2010  
 Draft Minutes of Parks and Recreation Commission Special Meeting of March 11, 2010  
 RTC 10-077 Opportunity for Council to Appeal Decisions of the Planning Commission Meeting 

of March 8, 2010 and the Administrative Hearing of March 10, 2010 
 RTC 10-079 Board and Commission Resignation (Information Only)  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Mayor Hamilton adjourned the meeting back to Closed Session at 9:07 p.m. 
 
 
______________________________________  ________________________________ 
Kathleen Franco Simmons          Date 
City Clerk 
 


